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Built circa 1854, Bonnie Shade is a raised Greek Revival clapboard cottage which is set
upon stucco-over-brick piers. It is basically T-shaped in plan, featuring a central

rear extension. This plan has been slightly modified by an extension of the right (east)
facade. The structure features a one-story portico with four freestanding non-fluted
stucco-over-brick columns of the Greek Doric order. These columns support a pediment
with boxed cornice-and paired 6/6 windows. The entrance features pilasters supporting
an entablature in which sidelights, rectangular transom, and double two-paneled doors

are encased. The portico also features a wrought-iron balustrade and is flanked on each
side by a 12/12 window with louvered shutters.

The east and west side facades are identical, being dominated by an end-gable with

paired 6/6 windows. The original portion of the first level of each side facade also
features two large 12/12 windows with Touvered shutters. The rear (north)facade features
a projecting central section which houses the original dining room. Anieff-centered
exterior chimney is located to the rear of the extension. This section has been altered
by the addition of the original smokehouse which has been converted into a modern kitchen.

The structure features a box cornice, baseboard with projection water drip molding, as
well as pilasters which define the bays. The majority of the windows on the first story
are either 9/9 or 12/12., The second story windows are 6/6. The gabled roof features
cedar shingles and symmetrical plastered chimneys with molded caps.

INTERIOR: Although the structure features a traditional floor plan of four rooms
divided by a central hall, it also presents an unusual configuration of a central dining
room projecting from the end of the central hall. Moldings and other woodwork are
typical of the 1850's, and much of the original fabric has been maintained. Mantels are
simple as are cornice moldings. Window and door surrounds feature corner block
medallions. A single run stairway is located to the rear of the central hall. The
parlor on the left (west) features an unusual paneled plaster ceiling of simple but
graceful design. . °

The second story features three bedrooms, one on each side of a central hall and one
located at its southerwncedd. A chimney projects through the center of each of the two
rooms which flank the hall.

SURROUNDINGS: Bonnie Shade is located in a primarily residential area of Florence,
South Carolina, although the road upon which it borders is well-traveled. The integrity
of the site has been maintained, however, by the set-back from the road and the large
landscaped lawn. The 19th Century kitchen, Tocated to the rear (north) of the house,

is also included within the nominated acreage.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Bonnie Shade is considered to be the second eldest house located within the city limits
of Florence, South Carolina. Built circa 1854, Bonnie Shade predates the incorporation
of the city of Florence in 1871. An excellent example of Greek Revival architecture,

the structure is also significant for its associations with locally prominent individuals.

Tradition indicates that Bonnie Shade was built by James Alexander Pettigrew on land
located on the western edge of his then Darlington County plantation. Pettigrew, a
progperous planter, is said to have constructed the house as a wedding present for his
daughter, Anna Eugenia, who married Joseph E. Wingate in 1856. Joseph E. Wingate, a
native of Darlington, farmed extensively and was reputed to be an accomplished horti-
culturalist. Tradition indicates that Wingate planted many of the shrubs and trees still
located on the Bonnie Shade property. During the Civil War, Wingate served in the Inglis
Light Battery, Company D of the 2nd South Carolina Artillery. Upon Joseph E. Wingate's
death in 1888, Bonnie Shade passed to his heirs who continued to use the house as a
residence.

In 1895 the Bonnie Shade property passed from the Wingate family to Joseph Woods Brunson
and his wife, Jane Melinda Brunson. According to tradition, Jane Melinda Brunson
christened the house "Bonnie Shade" in deference to both her Scottish heritage and to the
many large trees located on the property. Joseph Woods Brunson, born on ‘August 3, 1839,
was a native of the Darlington District. During the Civil War, Joseph W. Brunson served
in the Pee Dee Light Artillery, lst Regiment, South Carolina Volunteers. In 1893 Brunson
settled in Florence, South Carolina, where he became both a planter and a civil engineer.
Brunson also served as a captain of militia under Governor Wade Hampton.

Upon the death of Joseph W. and Jane M. Brunson, Bonnie Shade passed to their daughters,
Martha Brunson and Susannah Woods Brunson, Susannah Woods Brunson was a prominent
educator, serving many years as principle of St. John's School in Darlington. Bonnie
Shade remained in the hands of the Brunson family until 1965 when it was purchased and
restored by its present owners.

ARCHITECTURE: Bonnie Shade is an excellent example of a mid 19th Century Greek Revival
raised cottage in the Pee Dee Region of South Carolina. The structure features several
interesting architectural elements. These include the pilasters located at its corners,
the free-standing columns supporting pediment and portico, the central projecting dining
room on the rear, and the paneled plaster ceiling in the west parior.
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